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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION
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Judge James B. Moran

)
)
Centurion Financial Benefits LLC, et al., )
)
Defendants. )
)

1
FINAL JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION

AGAINST FRANK RFI LISSIMO ,

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “the Commission™), commenced this
action by filing its Complaint, followed by a First Amended Complaint, for injunctive and other
equitable relief pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Fedcral Trade Commission Act (“FTC
Act™), 15U.5.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse
Prcvention Act (“Telemarketing Act™), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101, et seq., charging that the defendants

engaged in deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.5.C.
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Part 310.

On T)ercm]'mr_lg 2006, the Court_eranted the FTC’s Motion for Moetion for lndement_on
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and Frank Bellissimo, finding them liable for Counts I, II, and T1] of the the FTC's First Amended
Complaint.

8.. The factual allegations in the Commission’s First Amended Complaint are ;;aken
as true against Defendant Frank Bellissimo. Those allegations and the cvidence supporting them

establish that Defendant Frank Bellissimo violated Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.

LE

9. Dcfendant Frank Bellissimo is likely to continue to engage in the acts and
practices alleged in the First Amended Compiaint unless he is permanently enjoined from such

acts and practices.

10.  The Commission is entitled to equitable monetary relief against Defendant Frank






gencral partncrship, corporation, or other business cntity.

5. “Credit-related products, programs, or services” means any product, program, or

scrvice which is advertised, offered for sale, or sold to consumers as a method by which
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limited to, credit cards, loans, or financing, or as a method to consolidate or liquidate debis.
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or services offercd for salc or sold by Defendant.
7. “Document” is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the usage of the
term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts,

photoeranhs. andig and video recordines. compujer recowds._and other data coronilations from.

which information can be obtained and translated, if necessary, through detcction devices into
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of the term.
8. *Material” means likely to affect a person’s choice of, or conduct regarding,
goods or services.

9. “Person™ means a natural person, organization, or other legal cntity, including, but
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association, cooperative, or any other group or combination acting as an cntity.
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§ 310.3(a)(2), by misrepresenting, directly or by implication, any material aspect of the
performance, efficacy, nature, or central characteristics of goods or services that are the subject

of a sales offer, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(iii);
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& 310.4(a)(4), by requesting or receiving payment of any fee or consideration in advance of
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likelihood of success in obtaining or arranging an extension of credit;
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1.

MONETARY RELIEF

ITSFURTHER ORDEREN thar:

A, JTudgmemnt 15 hereby entered against Defendant Frank Bellissimo in the amount of
Nine MilIiog, Eight Hundred Nincty-Four Thousand, Five Hundred Fourteen Dollars
(59,894,514 (UUSD)). This monetary judgment shall become immediately due and payable by
Defendant upon entry of this Order, and interest computed at the rate prescribed under 28 U.5.C,
& 1961, as amended, shall immediately begin to accrue on the unpaid balance;

B. All funds paid pursuant to this Section shall be deposited into a fund administered
by the Commission or its agent, to be uscd for equitable relicf, including but not limited to,
consumer redress and any attendant cxpenscs for the administration of such cquitable relief. In
the event that dircct redress to consumers is wholly or partially impracticable or funds remain

after redress is combpleted. the Commission mav anply anv remaininy funds for such other
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fictitious names; and

2, Defendant shall notify the Commission of any changes in corporate
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ownership interest in, that may affect compliance obligations arising under this Order, including,
but not limited to, a dissolution, assignment, sale, merger, or other action that would result in the
emergence of a successor entity; the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary, parent, or affiliate
that engages in any acts or practices subject to this Order; the filing of a bankruptcy fjctitinn; ora
changg in the corporate name or address, at least thirty (30) days prior to such change, provided
that, with respect to any proposcd change in the corporation about which the Defendant learns
less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, Defendant shall notify the

Commission as soon as is practicable aftcr obtaining such knowledge.

B. One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, Defendant
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4, A copy of cach acknowledgment of receipt of this Order obtained by
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C. For the purposes of this Order, Defendant shall, unless otherwise directed by the
Commission’s authorized representatives, mail all written notifications to the Commission to:
Associate Director for Enforcement
Federal Trade Commission

601 New Jersey Avenue NW.
Washington, D.C. 20580

Re: EYC v. Centurion Financial Benefits LLC, Civ. Action No. (05 5442; and

D. For purposes of the compliance reporting required by this Order, the Commission

e —

VIII.

MONITORING COMPLIANCE OF SALES PERSONNEL

1F IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant, in connection with any business where he

is the majority owner of the business or directly or indirectly manages or controls the business,

and where the busincss is engaged in telemarketing, or assisting others engaged in telemarketing,

iT o ~
A ll-allmg to take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and cnsure that ali

cmployces and independent contractors cngaged n sales or other customer service functions

comply with Section ] of this Stipulated Order. Such steps shall include adequate monitoring of
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amounts paid, quantity of items or services purchased, and description of items or services

purchased, to the extent such information is obtained in the ordinary course of business;

D. Complaint and refund requests (whether received directly, indirectly or through

any third party) and any responses to those complaints or requests;

E. Copies of all sales scripts, training matenials, advertisements, or other marketing

materials; and
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this Order, required by Section X, and all reports submitted to the FTC pursuant to Section VIL

X.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry

of this Order, Defendant shall deliver copics of the Order as directed below:
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or indirectly, or in which Defendant has a majority ownership interest, Defendant must deliver a
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thegsuhiect mattar nf thjs Meder. Nefendant rpust deliver a cany af fhig Crder tagll pringingli_and

managers of such business before engaging in such conduct.
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TECEIVINE a copy 0! Ee sraer pursuant to this Section.

X1

AfKNOWLENGMENT OF RFCFIET OF ORDER RY. DEEENNANT
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this Order as cntcred by the Court, must submit to the Commission a truthful sworn statement
acknowledging receipt of this Order.
XII,

RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

ITISFLIRTHFER (IRNERFED that the. Couri shall reiain iioiedictiom of thiemstier {ne




